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Chairman’s Report
Dear Member
Against this background of challenging economic and market
conditions, we successfully grew premium income levels for both
individual and group business to £13.3m, a 10% increase on 2008.

2009 was a year of celebration for the
Society as we marked our 175th
anniversary. The Society was founded in
its current form in 1834 and held its first
High Court in Salford in 1835. To mark
the occasion we held the 2009 High
Court as close as possible to that first venue, in the impressive
surroundings of Old Trafford. We welcomed colleagues from
overseas Courts, notably from Holland and Surinam, and had
some wonderful messages from our Courts in Barbados. A superb
delegate’s dinner marked our milestone and a High Chief Ranger’s
reception in the marvellous Manchester Town Hall was a suitably
prestigious event to sign off our week’s celebrations.

The Board
During the year Carys Clarke left the Board and we welcomed
Graham Berville former Chief Executive of Police Mutual. His
wide experience of the insurance industry, particularly of Friendly
Societies and mutuals has strengthened the Board and his
appointment was confirmed at the High Court.

Membership

But 2009 was also a challenging year for business. After the
unprecedented collapse in the financial markets that occurred
in 2008, 2009 saw the deepening of the recession in the UK
followed by a considerable improvement in financial markets
as the year progressed. The Society has worked hard during the
year to manage its finances in turbulent market conditions,
further progress its governance arrangements to comply with
the annotated combined code requirements, turn round our
membership recruitment and support Courts to develop services
to our members.

After a major investment in marketing and new business activities,
positive results are now starting to show through. We are halting
the decline in numbers. Overall membership at the end of 2009
was 72,460. This represents a drop of just over 0.5%, compared
to 2% in 2008 and 4.7% in 2007. This is a significant
achievement in a year when the recession continued to impact
into people’s finances. We can now look forward to growing our
membership in 2010 and beyond.
Benevolence remains a key part of Foresters membership and the
benefits we offer. Across the Society we have continued to see
more support given to members through discretionary benefits,
including helping members in distress. £775,000 from Court and
Society funds helped our members during the year. In addition
members fundraising produced £270,000 that Courts gave to
external charities.

Summary of Financial and Investment
Performance
Markets have shown a strong recovery during the year but
remained volatile. From a low in March of 3512 the FTSE100
recovered strongly to end year at 5412, a 27% rise year on year.
This is reflected in the value of our equity holdings. In managing
the investment portfolio through this volatile period, the Board
considered that the most appropriate fund management approach
going forward would be to invest our equity and fixed interest
portfolios in index tracking funds that will lead to lower
investment costs and an enhancement to the controls around
how we manage our capital risks.

The Court accreditation programme was accelerated to ensure
that all courts were assessed during the year and we could get
working on an on-going development programme to ensure all
Courts aligned with The Society’s Treating Customers Fairly (TCF)
objectives. This will roll out over the next couple of years as we
consider how best to ensure that Courts continue to add value for
members and contribute to our policy of treating customers fairly.

Commercial property markets also showed some signs of
improvement towards the end of the year. However, recovery in
values has been restricted initially to best quality assets. The end of
a long downward slide may now be in sight but there is still some
way to go before we see sustained and widespread recovery.

2009 also saw the Society improve further how we promote
contact between members. The Foresters Friends membership
networking site was developed and successfully launched. Every
day since the launch more members have joined, using it to share
ideas and views and begin to explore areas of common interests.
This new facility provides a real opportunity for me to share ideas
with members and get direct feedback.

Our investment returns recovered strongly in 2009. Where 2008
showed a £21m loss – including the reduction in the value of our
investments – 2009 saw an overall rise of £10.8m, an increase of
£31.8m over the previous year. This underlines the continued
financial strength of the Society. We have ridden out the worst of
the recession and are now more confident moving forwards.
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Governance/Regulation
Looking ahead to 2010, we are still operating in a difficult market,
and will need to pay close attention to how we invest to increase
our membership. The regulatory framework continues to develop
and we have started planning for the new European regime for
managing risk and capital resilience - Solvency II - that affects all
life insurance companies and friendly societies. We will need to
be ready to implement Solvency II by 2012. Solvency II is all about
helping firms manage risk better. Identifying risks, quantifying
risks, being aware of all risk exposures and having measures in
place to mitigate against any adverse circumstance should it arise.
Solvency II will move the insurance industry into a much more
transparent risk based governance culture that is about much
more than just capital adequacy. Due to the importance of
Solvency II, a Board sponsored project commenced in 2009 and
I am confident the Society is well placed to meet the 2012
deadline.
At the very end of 2009 we also responded to a letter from the
FSA to all mutual insurers about how to treat with-profit policy
holders fairly with regard to the inherited estate of a mutually
owned insurance business. At the time of writing this we are still
waiting for the FSA’s response. More should be known by High
Court. However, in responding to the FSA, the Board identified
that we could improve the way the Society’s assets are managed
at individual fund level and work commenced in early 2010 in
developing this. In this way we propose to ensure that the rights
of with-profit and non-profit members are clearly acknowledged
and respected.
As a financially strong Society committed to mutuality, we remain
keen to work closely with other Friendly Societies. We intend to be
an active member of the newly formed Association of Financial
Mutuals. We are ready to work with other societies in a range of
ways, from Affinity partnerships, which open up new benefits to
both groups of members, to full transfers of engagements where
other societies are forced to seek mergers or close to new
business.
We have come through the worst recession in the last 60 years.
The signs of growth in membership, business volumes and
premium and asset income are welcome and encouraging.
We can look forward to 2010 with confidence.

Glyn Carpenter
Chairman
24 March 2010
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Board of Directors
Non-Executive Directors
Glyn Carpenter

Graham Berville

Chairman
Glyn was elected to the Board in 2002,
appointed Deputy Chairman in 2004, and
Chairman in September 2007. Following
a career in the civil service and local
government, he is currently an Inspector
with the Audit Commission, examining
local government services and the NHS.
Glyn is a member of the Institute of
Directors and a qualified company director,
achieving Chartered Director status in
2007. Glyn is a full time employee of the
Audit Commission and he has declared he
has sufficient time and resources to carry
out his duties for the Society.

(Appointed July 2009)
After working in a variety of roles at the
Automobile Association and Norwich and
Peterborough Building Society Graham
joined CU Life in 1994 and was a Board
Director of CU and CGU Life. He joined
Police Mutual as CEO in 2001 a role
which he held until 2008. Since then
he has developed a portfolio of roles
including Management Consultancy and
is a founding partner of a Construction
Company specialising in the use of
re-cycled materials.

Cheryl Eagleson
Cheryl joined the Board in 2008. She has
been a Forester all her adult life and acts
as Trustee and Court Secretary. Her
professional life was in the paper textile
industry. Cheryl was the first Director to
take advantage of the Bursary Scheme
prior to her election.

Carl Genese
Deputy Chairman
(Appointed Deputy Chairman
September 2009)
Carl has held a variety of roles within the
Society and is currently Chairman of the
Heritage Trust and a Pension Trustee. He
is also Deputy Chairman on the Board of
Governors at his local primary school.

John Levett
John was elected to the Board in 2003.
His background is in HR with British Rail.
During 2006/7 John served as High Chief
Ranger, he is a Court Secretary and has
been a member of the Society since 1954.

Tony Lovell
Senior Independent Director
Tony was elected to the Board in
September 2007 and came to the Society
by way of a Non-Executive Directorship
of Tunstall. He was appointed to the
role of Senior Independent Director in
December 2008.

Penny O’Nions
Elected to the Board in 2007, Penny serves
as the Chairman of the Investment
Committee. Penny has broad experience
of the financial services sector, regularly
contributes to “Working Lunch” and
the financial press and is studying for
her Bar exam.
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Executive Directors
Andrew Pooley

Kevin Dann

Deputy Chairman up to September 2009
Andrew joined the Board in 2002 and
prior to being the Deputy Chairman
served as the Senior Independent Director
until 12 September 2007. He has worked
at the Royal Courts of Justice for over 30
years. Within the Society he has held a
range of branch officer roles during his
membership.

Chief Executive
Kevin joined the Society in August 2008
and has over 18 years experience within
the financial services sector. Prior to
joining Foresters he held a number of
senior roles with Alliance Trust PLC,
including 10 years as Managing Director
of Alliance Trust Savings and latterly as
Chief Operating Officer of Alliance Trust
Pensions.

Kathryn Vagneur
Paul Osborn

Kathryn joined the Board in April 2008
and is Chairman of the Audit and Risk
Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee. A director of
a private investment fund and two listed
investment funds, she consults on
strategy implementation and business
turnarounds. Previously she was a
director in the financial service practice
of PricewaterhouseCoopers. A qualified
accountant, she has a PhD from London
Business School and co-managed her
family’s cattle business in Colorado.

Finance Director
Paul joined Foresters as Finance Director
in June 2006 and was the first Executive
Director to be elected to the Board.
He is a qualified Chartered Accountant
with over 14 years experience within
the friendly society sector, most notably
in his previous employment at Teachers
Provident Society. Paul also has the
Diploma in Company Direction as
approved by the IOD.

Neil Armitage
Carys Clarke

Marketing Director
Neil joined the Society as Marketing
Director in 2008. He is a member of
the Chartered Institute of Marketing
where he has achieved the status of
Chartered Marketer and also has an
MBA from Exeter University. He has
sat on the Board of several organisations
as Marketing Director developing
brands and markets both at home and
overseas. More recently, Neil worked
for Exeter Friendly Society where he
was Group Marketing Director.

(Resigned May 2009)
Carys was elected to the Board in 2008 and is a qualified
veterinary surgeon. However she now practices as a Solicitor
in Birmingham. Carys is also a serving JP and has been a
Forester since 1994.

Directors are elected at High Court but are not formally appointed until approval is received from the FSA.
Directors appointed between High Courts are also subject to FSA approval prior to appointment to the Board at the next High Court.

6

Directors’ Report

Introduction
The Society’s Board of Directors present their report together with
the audited accounts of The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly
Society (the Society) for the year ended 31 December 2009.

levels of volatility seen in investment markets in 2008 continued
into 2009 and against a recessionary outlook for the wider
economy. These key performance indicators are explained further
on pages 9 to 13.

This report is the statutory report required by ‘The Friendly
Societies (Accounts and Related Provisions) Regulations 1994’.
This report is presented and discussed by the delegates at the
Society’s Annual General Meeting (High Court) that is being
held in September 2010.

The Board of Directors
The Board is the governing body of the Society. Each Director on
the Board is an FSA ‘Approved Person’. During 2009 the Board,
excluding the Chairman, had a majority of independent NonExecutive Directors. The Non-Executive Directors on the Board
consisted of the Chairman, Deputy Chairman, Senior Independent
Director and between five and seven other Directors. The
Executive Directors consisted of the Chief Executive, Finance
Director and Marketing Director. A list of Directors who held office
during the year is shown on pages 5 and 6.

Business Review
Objectives and Activities
The Society is a friendly society which incorporated under the
1992 Friendly Societies Act on the 1 January 2003. Its core
business objective is to provide financial services products to
its members in addition to discretionary financial, social and
benevolent benefits.

The Board regards each of the Non-Executive Directors, including
the Chairman, as being independent. In determining this, the
Board considers that the small amounts of remuneration received
by some individual Non-Executive Directors for non-insurance
activities from branches (Courts), see page 21, does not
undermine their independence in the role as a Non-Executive
Director of a life mutual.

The Society’s overall objective is summarised in its Vision
Statement as:
‘to be one of the leading mutual providers of easily accessible,
worthwhile, financial services products, while retaining our
caring values and the involvement of our members’

The Board considers that it has the requisite balance of
knowledge, skills and experience appropriate to the needs of the
Society. It has continued to develop this in recent years through
the external recruitment of Non-Executive Directors with specialist
skills and experience, as well as by improved training and
professional development for all Directors. The Board has the
support of a professional Company Secretary both during and
between meetings. The Board has Terms of Reference and
Standing Orders that define how it operates and its
responsibilities. These terms of reference are available on the
Society’s website at www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/companyreports-and-governance.aspx

The Board has further articulated this vision statement into
eight basic strategic objectives:
1. To be a mutual in which all Members have an opportunity
to participate in a meaningful way.
2. To provide a professional and friendly service to Members.
3. To treat Members fairly.
4. To make appropriate benevolent/extra contractual payments
available to Members.
5. To provide financial service products that are attractive in our
chosen marketplace.

There is a further document entitled ‘Decisions Reserved for the
Board’ which includes:

6. To be socially responsible in all that we do.
7. To manage the Society’s finances efficiently.

•

The determining of bonus rates, valuation policy and
Individual Capital Assessment (ICA).

•

Compliance with the Society’s Principles and Practices of
Financial Management (PPFM).

•
•

All strategic issues.

8. To meet statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Board sets key performance indicators and targets, which
it monitors on a regular basis throughout the year. The key
performance indicators are updated in line with the Society’s
objectives and priorities as the strategy of the Society progresses.
During 2009, the key performance indicators focused on the
financial performance of the Society, particularly as the high

•
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Approval of budgets, business plans, and a number of
statutory reports.
Agreement of investment strategy and policies.

The Board of Directors

(continued)

The Senior Management Team led by the Chief Executive and
comprising the Executive Directors and other senior managers are
delegated the responsibility for the day to day management of the
Society. It achieves this primarily by regular senior management
meetings that:

•
•

A Board sponsored project commenced mid 2009 with all Board
members receiving training on the Solvency II objectives. This was
followed later in the year by a presentation to the Directors on the
conclusions of a detailed gap analysis carried out by our external
advisor on what we need to achieve to implement the Solvency II
requirements. A full project plan is now in place.

Consider the impact and implementation of Board decisions.
Manage, identify and report to the Audit and Risk Committee
on corporate and operational risk.

Key Risks and Uncertainties

•

Manage and report to the Investment Committee on
investment performance, risks and related matters.

The principal risks facing the Society are grouped as: Market,
Operational, Strategic and Regulatory risk.

•
•
•

Manage the progress of projects.
Market Risk
Market risk represents the loss from a change in the value of, or
income from, the assets of the Society. The Society manages this
risk by the maintenance of a comprehensive investment strategy
which aims to support the objectives set out in the Society’s
Principles and Practices of Financial Management. This strategy
ensures that the Society maintains a diversified portfolio of assets
and sets benchmarks for each asset type that our investment
managers are required to operate within. The Investment
Committee meets regularly to monitor the performance of all
asset classes and consider investment policy against changes in
market conditions.

Co-ordinate operational issues.
Review financial and new business performance.

Strategy
The Board monitors and regularly reviews strategy as part of
the Society’s annual business planning process and at times of
significant external market change such as that seen over 2008
and into 2009. Having reviewed our strategy and medium term
plan, the Board has agreed a forward looking strategic approach
which remains broadly consistent with that set in 2008.

Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or
failed internal processes, people and systems, and includes the
risk of loss caused by external events such as regulatory changes.
The Society has in place a comprehensive risk management and
internal control framework that ensures that risks are identified
and necessary controls are in place or mitigating actions have
been taken. A fully comprehensive internal audit programme
reports on the risk management and internal control framework
to the Audit and Risk Committee. Operational risk registers
are in place and are regularly reviewed by Risk Management
Executive Committee (RMEC) and challenged by the Audit and
Risk Committee.

The Society’s new business activities will continue to focus on
developing affinity relationships with key partners where our
working together delivers mutual benefits to the members and
customers of both organisations. We will also be actively working
with Independent Financial Advisers and other financial
intermediaries to distribute our range of products to a wider
marketplace.
An important part of growing the Society’s membership continues
to be developing the capability to reach new and current
members directly. With the ever increasing use by consumers of
the internet and their higher expectations of online services, the
Society is continuing to invest in its online resources for both new
business activities and the enhancement of services and benefits
to members.

Strategic Risk
Strategic risks are those risks the Society faces which might affect
our ability to meet our core objectives. These risks are managed by
the Board and Senior Management through the development of
annual and medium term business plans and the setting of key
performance indicators and targets which are monitored
throughout the year.

The Board will continue to discuss strategy with members at
Annual General Meetings and will seek other opportunities to
understand members’ views.

Regulatory Risk
Regulatory risk represents the risk associated with a failure to
comply with an increasing array of regulatory requirements
and governance expectations. The Society has a comprehensive
governance framework led by the Board and its Committees.
The day to day monitoring and managing of regulatory risk has
been delegated by the Audit and Risk Committee to the RMEC.

Future Plans
Solvency II is due for implementation in 2012. This will replace the
existing Individual Capital Assessment risk assessment tool with a
comprehensive risk management framework. This starts with the
adequacy of the Society’s financial resources, reviews the risk
management systems and ensures comparability and transparency
in our reporting processes.
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Directors’ Report
Business Review (continued)
Key Performance Indicators
The Society uses the following key performance indicators to
manage and monitor its financial performance:

•
•
•
•

risks that the Society might face were updated to reflect the
events of 2008 and the continued economic uncertainties looking
forward. The lessons learned from these extreme market events
and the outcome of this stress testing were reported to and
considered by the Board in the form of the Society’s Individual
Capital Assessment (ICA), a regulatory process that forms a key
risk tool for the Board in managing the Society’s capital. One of
the significant outcomes of this process in 2009 was the decision
by the Board to make some key changes to the Society’s
investment strategy to further improve protection of the
Society’s capital resources from the effects of extreme changes
in investment markets. Further information on these changes
can be found in the “Investment Returns” section on page 11.

Capital Resources
Premium Income
Investment Returns
Membership

Other non-financial key performance indicators used by the
Society include:

•
•

Engagement with Members
Complaint Management

For the Society, being a mutual organisation, surplus capital
resources are used to grow and expand the business. Foresters
is a branch Society and increasing the membership base on a
sustained basis and improving services for the benefit of all
members are key objectives.

Capital Resources
The Society’s capital position is set out in note 19 of the financial
statements. At 31 December 2009 the Society’s capital resources
for both long term and general insurance business exceeded the
statutory capital resource requirements prescribed by the Financial
Services Authority by £21.9m (2008: £20.7m).

The Fund for Future Appropriations (FFA) represents the capital
available to support the current business and future growth, and at
the end of 2009 it stood at £34m, an increase of £1.5m on 2008.
In these times of market risk and economic uncertainty, the financial
strength of the Society allows for the Board to be committed to
investing in assets that provide real opportunity for long term
growth in value for its policyholders and members. The following
table shows the progression in the FFA over the last 5 years.

As the volatile market conditions seen in 2008 continued into
2009 the Board and its Investment Committee continued to
closely monitor the Society’s capital resources. The stress scenarios
considered by the Directors that reflect the market and investment

Fund for Future Appropriations
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Premium Income
The Society’s total gross premium income for 2009 amounted to
£13.3m (2008: £12.1m). This comprises all premiums disclosed in
these accounts, including those received on the island of Guernsey.

Group business performed very well over the year with premium
income exceeding £7m for the first time, an increase of over 9%
on 2008. Group business continues to be a vital part of the
Society’s activities since it provides the opportunity to spread
overheads over a larger premium income. Through close and loyal
relationships with a small number of brokers the Society offers
group schemes to a number of professions, by far the most
successful has been the Society’s longstanding links with police
federations. This association has grown over many years,
supported by recognition of the benevolent approach by the
Society to our business with them. The Foresters Police Benevolent
Fund, launched by the Society in 2007, exists so that in times of
need the members of these group schemes could receive the same
type of discretionary financial support that the Society’s individual
members have benefited from for over 175 years. During 2009
£19,000 was paid to group members. Further details of gross
premium income can be found in note 3 set out on page 32.

Increasing new business and renewal activity in both individual
and group business contributed to the overall growth of 8% in
total premiums. Marketing initiatives delivered higher than
anticipated levels of single premium business and changes
resulting from a review of the Society’s core tax exempt savings
plan products began to show through in higher average regular
premium levels. Saving for children continued to attract high levels
of interest amongst members and non-members alike, with the
Society’s Ethical Child Trust Fund being proactively sought out,
most noticeably via the Society’s updated website.

Total Gross Premium Income
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Directors’ Report
Business Review (continued)
Investment Returns
2009 was a year of deep recession. The market turmoil at the start of the year reflected widespread fears that the collapse of our banking
system could result in economic downturn. However, confidence was restored by the lowering of interest rates, effectively to zero, and the
availability of credit through the quantitative easing methods. Having reached a low point in early March, equity markets recovered to
achieve their best annual return of the decade. The FTSE 100 ended the year up 22%. Commercial property produced negative returns for
the second year in a row with the Industrial Property Databank (IPD) Total Return Index ending 3.5% higher. The Government Gilt market
had a relatively lacklustre year with the UK 10 year yield rising to 4%.
The Board continues to recognise the necessity to spread investment risk by diversifying the investment portfolio into equities and fixed
interest securities, leaving the Society less exposed to a fall in value of properties and closer matched to its liabilities. However, the recent
volatility in the equity markets has led the Board to enhance the controls around maintaining capital by introducing a number of trigger
points that will automatically bite and force part of the equity portfolio to be sold when the FTSE 100 reaches set index limits. This will
enable capital to be controlled within the ICA risk appetite limits approved by the Board and enable us to limit our exposure to significant
losses. The Board have also approved a number of “buy-back” points when the equity markets recover to ensure that the Society is not
out of the market too long and can participate in the investment gains.
The following graphs show the FTSE all share index returns and the Industrial IPD Total Return Index encompassing all property (Retail,
Office & Industrial) over the last 5 years. Particularly they show the recovery in the equity markets in 2009 and a fall in the first half of the
year in the commercial property market, before recovering in the second six months. The Investment Committee benchmark the Society’s
property and equity asset class performance against these two indices.
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It is pleasing for the Board to report that the Society’s investment advisers once again produced investment returns greater than the FTSE
all share index and our property portfolio did better than the industry respected IPD commercial property indices. The Society’s property
portfolio is managed by Aston Rose Limited, who carried out the valuation of most of the property portfolio at the year end. The Society
is committed to investing policyholders’ funds for the long term and to closely match insurance and member liabilities within its investment
strategy. The investment returns for the Society are detailed in notes 4 and 10. The Society’s Board of Directors has determined that no
monies can be invested in any organisation that cannot demonstrate that it satisfies the high levels of prudential operation that would be
expected by the FSA (whether regulated or not). This decision was made because such deposits from Courts would expose members’ funds
to greater risk in an unregulated environment.
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Membership
The total individual membership of the Society at 31 December 2009 was 72,460 (2008: 72,875). One of the continuing challenges facing
much of the friendly society sector is that of declining membership. In 2008 the Society began a process of developing and strengthening
its marketing and new business capabilities and in 2009 the effects of this investment began to be seen in terms of the Society’s overall
membership numbers. The rate of decline experienced in previous years was significantly reduced, with total membership falling by a little
over 0.5% over the year. In terms of the Order Insurance Fund, which is the Society’s main fund in which all new with profits business is
written, the number of policies held by members grew by almost 5% in 2009. The following graph details how individual membership has
changed over the past 5 years.

Individual Membership
85,000

Members

80,000

75,000

70,000

65,000

60,000
2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

Year

Engagement with Members
One of the eight strategic objectives of the Society is “to be a mutual in which all members have an opportunity to participate in a
meaningful way”. The key benchmark against which the Board monitors whether members are participating is the members (or delegates)
attendance at the AGM or High Court. As a branch friendly society, members have the opportunity through their branch, known as a
Court, to participate in debating and voting on the many topical and strategic issues that are on the agenda. As a mutual organisation,
owned by its members, the Society is committed to ensuring that as many Courts as possible send delegates to High Court.
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Directors’ Report
Business Review (continued)
Complaints Management
Society Rule 32 provides for necessary procedure for the settlement of internal disputes, complaints or claims arising between members
and the Board. A copy of The Society Memorandum and Rules is available from the Registered Office on demand. Any complaint arising
out of the business of the Society that is subject to regulation by the Financial Services Authority will be dealt with in accordance with
its requirements. Such complaints should be referred, in the first instance, to the Head of Risk and Compliance at the Registered Office.
Monitoring complaints is a key indicator for the Board and the following graph shows the volume of complaints received and upheld
over the past 5 years. Both complaint levels, overall and numbers upheld, remain low and well within expected levels given the nature
and scale of the Society’s business.
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Business Performance
The technical income and expenditure accounts on page 23 explain the movement in the long term and general business insurance funds in the
year. The technical income for long term business has risen significantly from 2008, mainly as a result of the unrealised gains on the insurance
assets in 2009 after incurring unrealised losses in 2008. This is shown in more detail in note 4. The technical charges show an increase over 2008
as the long term business provision assumptions have been strengthened. Claims remain at similar levels to 2008. An increase in acquisition costs
account for the rise in management expenses, as the Society looks to attract more members by increasing its marketing activity. All of these
movements have resulted in a transfer from the fund for future appropriations (FFA) of £0.6m (2008: transfer from the FFA of £8.6m).
The Consolidated Non–Technical Account on page 24 highlights movements in the Court, Investment Associations, benevolent and non insurance
funds. Unrealised investment returns again dominate the difference in the results between 2009 and 2008, with 2008 incurring a loss of more
than £22m. The transfer to the fund for future appropriations was £2.3m (2008: transfer from the FFA of £10.9m).
The Consolidated Balance Sheet on page 26 shows an increase in the fund for future appropriations of £1.5m to £34.0m and an increase in total
assets from £171.5m to £172.4m at 31 December 2009.

Going Concern
The Board is of the opinion that the Society has adequate capital resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
For this reason the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis for the Society’s accounts.
Post Balance Sheet Event
At a specially arranged Extraordinary General Meeting on 27 January 2010, the Court depositors of the Sheffield & Hallamshire District
of the Ancient Order of Foresters Investment Association voted to dissolve the Association with immediate effect. Professional advisors
have been appointed by the Association’s Committee of Management to support the Committee through the dissolution process.
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Directors’ Report
Governance Arrangements
Introduction
The names and profiles of those who served on the Board
during the year are set out on pages 5 and 6. Relevant
transactions between the Society and the Directors are set
out in Notes 8 and 23.

The Board will continue to monitor the development of best
practice and consider where improvements can be made to the
governance arrangements within the Society.

The Board has established sub-committees to consider certain
specialist areas in more detail than would be possible at a Board
meeting. Each sub-committee operates within defined Standing
Orders and Terms of Reference. The terms of reference for the
Board sub-committees are available on the Society’s website at
www.forestersfriendlysociety.co.uk/company-reports-andgovernance.aspx. Further details of the role and membership of
each sub-committee is shown on pages 16 and 17.

Appraisal and Evaluation
A process of annual appraisal exists for the Board with a view to
improving both individual contributions and group achievement.
The appraisal process is conducted by the Chairman and involves
consultation and individual interviews with Board Members. The
Senior Independent Director leads the appraisal of the Chairman.
The Board is satisfied that each of its Members committed the
time required to properly discharge the role. Each Board Member
has undertaken a programme of continued professional
development designed to expand and update their skills and
knowledge, both within the Society and outside. The Chairman
has met the Non-Executive Directors from time to time without
Executives present.

The Board meets at least eight times a year. It is responsible for
the strategic direction of the Society. Day to day management and
the implementation of the strategy is delegated to the Chief
Executive and the Senior Management Team. The governance
arrangements followed throughout the history of the Society
reflect a traditional approach to mutuality. A significant feature of
this has been to ensure the Society is governed by members for
members. The Society considers that members have benefited
from those arrangements. This is reflected in the products and
services offered by the Society whereby quality of the membership
experience has been the foremost consideration.

Senior Independent Director
The Myners Report recommends that mutual insurers maintain
a dialogue with their members and have a Senior Independent
Director available to handle issues and concerns raised by
members. Tony Lovell was re-appointed Senior Independent
Director on 8 September 2009.

The Board fully supports the principle of best practice in the
governance of friendly societies since good governance must
clearly be in the best interests of members. Therefore, in recent
years, to comply with best practice the following governance
arrangements have been introduced:

•

The appointment of a Chairman annually for a period of
more than a year.

•

The separation of the Chairman and High Chief Ranger
(HCR) roles within the Board.

•
•
•

The separation of the role of HCR and Non-Executive Director.

Society’s Relationship with Members
As the majority of Non-Executive Directors of the Board are also
members of the Society, its governance arrangements always take
into account the views of members. Members are allocated to
Courts which are represented through a delegate system at the
Society’s Annual General Meeting (known as ‘High Court’).

The inclusion of Executive Directors on the Board.

High Court takes place over a three day period and includes
detailed discussions between the Board and members on the
performance of the Society and discussion on strategic issues.
Both Executive and Non-Executive Directors attend many meetings
with members during the year.

The development and operation of sub-committees to
consider certain specialist areas in more detail than would
be possible at a Board meeting.

•

A change in emphasis in the way that the Nominations
Committee works. It now identifies the knowledge, skills
and experience required to produce a competent Board.

•

An expanded Directors’ Report within these Accounts, that
identifies and reports on many additional aspects of the
Society’s governance arrangements.

•

The ability to co-opt Non-Executive Directors from outside
the Society if individuals with the required knowledge, skills,
qualifications and experience cannot be found amongst its
membership.
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Directors’ Report
Governance Arrangements (continued)
Statement of the Directors’ Responsibilities
The Friendly Societies Act 1992 (‘the Act’) requires the Directors
to prepare accounts for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Society at the end of the
year and of its income and expenditure for that year.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which must show and explain the transactions of the
Society and disclose the financial position of the Society with
reasonable accuracy at any time, and enable them to ensure
that the accounts comply with the Act and the regulations
under it. They are also responsible for the system of internal
control, for safeguarding the assets of the Society and hence
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and the detection
of fraud and other irregularities.

In preparing those accounts the Directors are required to:

•

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

•

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

•

state whether applicable United Kingdom accounting
standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

•

prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless
it is inappropriate to assume that the Society will continue
in business.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the Society
website. The Directors’ responsibility also extends to the ongoing
integrity of the accounts contained therein. Legislation in the
United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of accounts may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
The Directors confirm that the Society did not carry out any
activities outside its powers during the year.

Attendance at Meetings
Directors attendance at Meetings and Committees of which they are members in 2009 is as follows:

Board

Nominations
Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Audit & Risk
Committee

Investment
Committee

9

7

3

6

6

Glyn Carpenter

9/9

5/7

3/3

-

-

Carl Genese

8/9

-

-

5/6

-

Number of meetings

Anthony Lovell

8/9

6/7

-

5/6

-

Neil Armitage

8/9

-

-

-

-

Graham Berville

6/6**

-

-

-

2/2*

Carys Clarke

2/3***

-

-

-

-

Kevin Dann

9/9

-

-

-

6/6

Cheryl Eagleson

9/9

-

-

1/1*

-

John Levett

9/9

7/7

-

-

6/6

Penny O’Nions

9/9

-

3/3

-

6/6

Paul Osborn

9/9

-

-

-

6/6

Andrew Pooley

7/9

1/1*

-

-

5/6

Kathryn Vagneur

8/9

-

3/3

6/6

-

* Appointed to Committees in September 2009.
** Co-opted to Board in July 2009
*** Resigned June 2009

The Board has a number of sub-committees that are formed to deal with specialist areas in more detail than would be possible at a Board
meeting. Each sub-committee operates with defined Standing Orders and Terms of Reference. All Standing Orders and Terms of Reference
are reviewed annually by the Board. Appointment to Sub-Committees takes place following High Court.
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Nominations Committee

Investment Committee

Glyn Carpenter - Chairman
John Levett
Tony Lovell
Andrew Pooley

Penny O’Nions - Chairman
Graham Berville
Kevin Dann
John Levett
Paul Osborn
Andrew Pooley

The responsibilities of the Nominations Committee include:

•

Encouraging suitable candidates to serve on the Board from
the membership.

•

Ensuring that nominees for election or re-election to the Board
meet the Society’s criteria and the requirements of the FSA’s
Approved Person regime and provide a report to the Annual
General Meeting on the suitability of the nominees.

•

Review and approve the investment management agreements
and the appointment of external investment managers.

•

Monitor the fund performance of all assets classes plus the
total portfolio against performance measurement targets.

Considering the following information from each Nominee;
details of the nominee’s knowledge, skills, qualifications and
experience; an “FSA Form A” is completed by the nominee;
credit reference and criminal bureau agency checks; and
details of any previous adverse information held by Head
Office. Consideration is given to the answers and statements
on the Form A and any adverse information from the checks
undertaken or disclosed in Head Office files. Where issues or
concerns are identified, the nominee will be asked to provide
additional information.

•

Review the performance and fees of all external investment
managers; and Review the investment risk management policy
in consultation with the risk management committee.

The main tasks this year have been to:

•

Considering suitable candidates for the role of High Chief
Ranger following separation of the role from the Board.

•

•
•
•

Review of skills matrix.

•

•

The main responsibilities of the Investment Committee are to:

•
•
•

Review investment strategy.
Reduction in fund managers.
Review the balance of investments held by individual funds
against liabilities they face.
Take into consideration the movements in the equity and
property markets during the latter part of the year; and
monitor fixed interest vehicles.

Succession planning for the Board and Sub-Committees.
Considering and making recommendations for appointment
to Sub-Committees.

Remuneration Committee

Development of a bursary scheme to encourage and facilitate
applications for the Board from the membership.

Glyn Carpenter - Chairman
Penny O’Nions
Kathryn Vagneur

The Board has adopted the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
(ICSA) Guidance Note on the Terms of Reference for the
Nomination Committee of a Mutual Insurer. These Terms require
the Nomination Committee to be proactive in considering the
balance of knowledge, skills, qualifications and experience of the
Board as a whole. This Committee formally interviews candidates
for vacancies and uses an external specialist resource to verify the
process followed and the suitability of candidates where necessary.
It will be making recommendations to the Board on which
candidates fulfil the required criteria for elections being held at the
Annual General Meeting in September 2010.

The Remuneration Committee determines the remuneration of
senior management and approves the policy of remuneration
for other staff. In doing so it considers the trends in competitor
and local employment markets. It also makes recommendations
to the Board regarding the basis of Non-Executive Directors’
remuneration for confirmation at the Annual General Meeting.
Further information on the remuneration policy is shown on
pages 20 and 21.
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Directors’ Report
Governance Arrangements (continued)
Audit and Risk Committee
Kathryn Vagneur - Chairman
Cheryl Eagleson
Carl Genese
Tony Lovell

Internal audits of the regulated business are conducted by an
independent external firm that reports to the Audit and Risk
Committee. Audit of Courts is conducted by a member of staff.
The Society currently has a risk management framework which
includes a detailed risk register and two further Committees that
report into the Audit and Risk Committee:

The Audit and Risk Committee meets as at least four times a year
to assist the Board to fulfil its responsibilities in relation to risk
management and financial reporting. The main duties and
responsibilities of the Audit and Risk Committee are to:

•

Monitor the integrity of the report and accounts of the
company.

•

Monitor any formal announcements in relation to the
Society’s performance.

•

Review significant judgements which may affect financial
reporting.

•

Review the Society’s internal control, risk and capital
management systems.

•

Monitor and review the effectiveness of the Society’s internal
audit processes.

•

Make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and remuneration of the external auditor.

•

Approve the remuneration of the external auditor in regard
to non-audit services.

•

Monitor the independence and objectivity of the external
auditors and the effectiveness of the audit processes.

•

Consider the recommendations of the external and internal
auditors and management’s response to these.

•

Report to the Board on risk, reporting and audit matters
of importance, and

•

Report to the Board and identify any other matters for
which the Committee considers that action or improvement
is required.

•

The Risk Management Executive Committee (RMEC) sets the
principles and standards with respect to internal controls,
defines risk policies and appetites, has input on the nature,
scope, objectives and functions of internal audit and oversees
the management of business risk and regulatory compliance
and company policy.

•

The Risk and Internal Control Committee (RICC) ensures the
efficient management of known business risks, compliance
with relevant legal and company policy requirements and the
adequacy of internal controls and documented procedures to
deliver the management of business risks and to provide
assurance to the RMEC.

Statement of Internal Control
The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management, in
accordance with the Code for the period from 1 January 2009 to
the date of approval of this Annual Report. No significant failings
or weaknesses were identified during this review.

The minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee meeting are
circulated to the Board following each meeting. The Chief
Executive, Finance Director and internal and external auditors
usually attend committee meetings. The auditors meet with the
Committee regularly without the Executive Directors or any other
members of staff being present.
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Compliance with Myners’ Recommendations
The Board is committed to following best practice as regards governance wherever appropriate for the Society. Myners’ recommendations
are produced on a ‘comply or explain’ basis. This recognises that best practice should be followed in most circumstances but that firms also
have the opportunity to explain why certain recommendations were not applied. The Society has complied with the provisions of the
Annotated Combined Code for Mutuals in every respect with the exception of the following:

Code Ref

Provision

Explanation

A.7

Did the annual report contain a statement on
performance and strategy in the form of an
operating and financial review?

This provision applies to larger mutuals. The Board does not
consider that such a report is appropriate or proportionate for
the Foresters in view of its relative size.

D2.1

Does the company permit and encourage the
use of proxy votes at general meetings?

The Society operates a delegate system and its rules do not
permit the use of Proxy voting.

A.6

Does the Board undertake a formal and
rigorous annual evaluation of its own
performance and that of the Committees
and individual Directors?

The Board has introduced an appraisal system, which is under
further development alongside the skills matrix established
during the year.

Directors and Officers Liability Insurance
The Society has maintained liability insurance cover for members of the Board and Senior Management of the Society as permitted by
Section 106 of the Friendly Societies Act 1992.
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Directors’ Report

High Court Report

Statement of Disclosure
of Information to Auditors

As in previous years, an additional report will be published for
High Court. In the meantime, it is requested that any question
relating to the financial statements be forwarded in writing to
the Registered Office of the Society before 30 July 2010.

Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of this report
confirms that so far as each of them is aware, there is no
information relevant to the audit of the Society’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 of which the
auditors are unaware; and the Director has taken all steps that
he/she ought to have taken in his/ her duty as a Director to make
him/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Society’s auditors are aware of that information.

Foresters General Insurance Services Limited
This is a wholly owned subsidiary of The Ancient Order of
Foresters Friendly Society Limited that exists to enable a broader
range of financial services products to be provided to its members.
It is hoped that further opportunities to increase the services
available to members through this subsidiary are identified in the
coming years.

By Order of the Board
Kevin Dann
Chief Executive/Company Secretary
24 March 2010

Its governance arrangements are entirely separate and its Board
of Directors are not a sub-committee of the Board. The Directors,
who received no remuneration for their duties, as at 31 December
2009, were:
John Levett - Chairman
Tony Lewis - Secretary
Mike Nightingale - Director
Tim Robertson - Director

Donations
The Society donated £3,500 (2008: £1,670) to charity during the
year. Each year the Society makes a donation to the Mayor’s charity
in the town that hosts High Court. In 2009 Manchester received
£500 and in 2008 Scarborough received £500. The Society also
donated £3,000 (2008: £870) to the Police Federation of Northern
Ireland. No political donations were made in either year.
Courts carry out a lot of charitable fund raising work as part of
their social activities and in 2009 £269,850 (2008: £252,718) was
paid out to various local and national charities.

Independence of External Auditors
As well as acting as external auditors to the Society, BDO LLP has
provided other professional services to the Society during the year.
Acknowledging that the firm has provided non-audit services as
shown in note 7b, BDO LLP has confirmed their independence to
the members of the Audit and Risk Committee.
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Directors’
Remuneration Report
This report sets out the remuneration policy for the members
of the Society’s Board. It details the various elements of their
remuneration in 2009, and explains how the Society has applied
the Annotated Combined Code on Corporate Governance for
Life Mutuals with respect to Directors’ remuneration.

The remuneration of all Non-Executive Directors, including the
Chairman, is reviewed on an annual basis by the Remuneration
Committee using expert advice and guidance from both internal
and external sources. A recommendation is made to the full
Board, who will put a proposition to the delegates at High Court
to approve any remuneration changes. High Court will determine
the final remuneration amount.

Remuneration Committee
The Non-Executive Directors are only entitled to fees and
expenses, and do not participate in any performance pay schemes,
or receive any pension arrangements or other benefits.

The role and list of Non-Executive Directors who sit on the
Remuneration Committee is shown on page 16. The Chief
Executive is invited to attend the meetings to participate in the
consideration of Executives remuneration and associated matters,
but he is excluded from detailed discussions relating to his own
remuneration. From time to time, the Remuneration Committee
will make use of external specialists to provide independent expert
advice, although none were used in 2009.

Remuneration Policy
The Society’s remuneration policy aims to recruit, motivate,
support and retain good quality staff and executives with the
necessary skills to achieve the Society’s strategic objectives.
Remuneration is considered within the financial services sector for
the geographical location the Society occupies. The policy is to
provide a mid market level of salary that is fair to the Society and
reflects the contribution made by the employee. These salaries
are reviewed annually and become effective from 1 October for
Non-Executive Directors, or 1 January for all other staff, including
Executive Directors. Salary is the only pensionable remuneration
the Society offers.

Remuneration Policy
for Non-Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors are elected for a three year period by
the members at High Court, subject to FSA approval. This
appointment can be extended for two further periods of three
years at which point the Non-Executive Director has to stand
down. The full Board will determine any notice period that is
convenient to both the Society and the Director under other
circumstances.
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Directors’
Remuneration Report (continued)
Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors
The remuneration policy of the Executive Directors comprises of basic salary, annual cash based bonus, a contributory pension and other
benefits.
The remuneration is approved by the Board based upon recommendation by the Remuneration Committee, which includes all salary
amendments. The non-pensionable annual cash bonus is linked to individual contribution towards the Society fulfilling its strategic
objectives, payable in December of the year in question. Executive Directors are also entitled to benefits in kind that include a company
car (or an equivalent allowance) and private medical insurance. A relocation allowance is offered to new Executive Directors where they
are required to relocate under the terms of the appointment.
Executive Directors do not currently have service contracts as Directors. The employment contract of the Executive Directors, including the
Chief Executive, is for a contractual notice period of 6 months by either party. Unless notice to terminate the contract has been given all
Executive Directors’ contracts continue automatically until the age of 65.

Salary/
Fees
Non Executives

Salary as
Court Official
£

Bonuses

Benefits

Pension
Contributions

Total

2008

£

£

£

£

£

£
20,304

G Carpenter

21,000

-

-

-

-

21,000

C Genese

13,446

900

-

-

-

14,346

13,082

A Lovell

12,600

-

-

-

-

12,600

12,182

8,745

-

-

-

-

8,745

-

G Berville

6,300

-

-

-

-

6,300

3,828

C Eagleson

C Clarke

12,600

5,850

-

-

-

18,450

9,974

J Levett

12,640

1,680

-

-

-

14,320

16,234

P O’Nions

18,900

-

-

-

-

18,900

18,390

A Pooley

13,566

3,321

-

-

-

16,887

18,455

K Vagneur

18,900

-

-

-

-

18,900

15,300

A Battershill

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,750

M Clarke

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,369

Executives
115,000

-

9,000

43,541

10,542

178,083

29,700

P Osborn

K Dann

85,000

-

8,000

11,336

8,500

112,836

112,148

N Armitage

66,950

-

12,500

31,559

6,695

117,704

81,400

-

-

-

-

-

-

46,352

405,647

11,751

29,500

86,436

25,737

559,071

407,468

M Rothery

Included within the benefits of K Dann is a relocation payment of £28,999. The relocation allowance was approved by the Board within
the overall terms of appointment. Included within the benefits for N Armitage is a travel and accommodation allowance of £22,048.

Directors’ Pension Benefits
Non-Executive Directors do not receive any pensionable benefits from the Society.
P Osborn is a member of the Society’s Group Personal Pension Scheme, which is a money purchase stakeholder pension scheme with
Scottish Widows plc. The Society has made contributions as shown in the remuneration table above to this scheme. K Dann and N
Armitage have had their pension contributions shown above paid into their respective personal pension schemes.

G Carpenter
Chairman Remuneration Committee
24 March 2010
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of
The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited
We have audited the financial statements of the Ancient Order of
Foresters Friendly Society Limited for the year ended 31 December
2009 which comprise the Consolidated and Society Income and
Expenditure Accounts, the Consolidated and Society Balance
Sheets, and the Consolidated and Society Statement of Total
Recognised Gains and Losses and the related notes. These
financial statements have been prepared under the accounting
policies set out therein. We are also required to report on the
Board of Director’s Report for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Our report has been prepared pursuant to the requirements of
Section 73 of the Friendly Societies Act 1992 and for no other
purpose. No person is entitled to rely on this report unless such a
person is a person entitled to rely upon this report by virtue of and
for the purpose of the Friendly Societies Act 1992 or has been
expressly authorised to do so by our prior written consent. Save as
above, we do not accept responsibility for this report to any other
person or for any other purpose and we hereby expressly disclaim
any and all such liability.

Respective Responsibilities
of the Directors and Auditors

Basis of Audit Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing
Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgments made by the Board in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Society’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

The Director’s responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report and
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Board of
Directors’ Report.
Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance
with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or
error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy
of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Friendly Societies Act 1992 and
the regulations made under it. In addition we report to you if, in
our opinion, the Society has not kept proper accounting records,
or if we have not received all the information, explanations and
access to documents we require for our audit, or if information
specified by law regarding Board members’ remuneration and
other transactions is not disclosed.

In our opinion:

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects
the Society’s compliance with the nine provisions of the
Annotated Combined Code specified for our review by the Rules
of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not.
We are not required to consider whether the Board’s statements
on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Society’s corporate governance
procedures or its risk and control procedures.

•

the financial statements give a true and fair view, in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the Group and the
Society's affairs as at 31 December 2009 and of the
Group and Society’s income and expenditure for the
year then ended;

•

the financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Friendly Societies Act 1992 and
the regulations made under it; and

We also report to you our opinion as to whether the Board of
Directors’ Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Friendly Societies Act 1992 and the regulations made under it, and
as to whether the information given therein is consistent with the
financial statements.

•

the Board of Directors’ Report has been prepared in
accordance with the Friendly Societies Act 1992 and the
regulations made under it and the information given
therein is consistent with the financial statements for
the financial year.

We read the other information contained in these Report and
Accounts and consider whether it is consistent with the audited
financial statements. This other information comprises only the
Chairman’s Statement, the Board of Directors’ Report and the
Directors’ Remuneration Report. We consider the implications for
our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our
responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Kim Hayward
Senior Statutory Auditor
for and on behalf of BDO LLP, statutory auditor
Southampton, United Kingdom
29 March 2010
BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales
(with registered number OC305127)
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Consolidated and Society’s Income and Expenditure
Account for the year ended 31 December 2009
Technical Account - Long Term Business

Notes

2009
£’000

2008
£’000

11,692
11,692
1,394
2,611
15,697

10,552
200
10,752
2,214
(6,844)
6,122

5

(10,362)
4
(10,358)
500
(9,858)

(9,520)
99
(9,421)
(226)
(9,647)

6

(2,806)
(2,806)

((2,013)
(2,013)

(3,462)
(93)
(3,555)

(3,152)
(117)
(3,269)

(16,219)

(14,929)

(522)
(84)
606

((((((8,807)
159
8,648

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
Gross premium written
Outward reinsurance premiums
3
4
4

Investment income
Unrealised (losses)/gains on investments
Total Technical Income
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance
Claims paid:
Gross amount
Reinsurers’ share
Change in provision for claims: Gross amount
Net claims incurred
Long term business provision
Gross amount
Reinsurers’ share
Other Expenditure
Net operating expenses
Investment expenses and charges
Taxation attributable to Long Term Business

7
4
9

Total Technical Charges
Deficit of technical income over technical charges
Transfer (to)/from non-technical account
Transfer from fund for future appropriations

18

Balance on Technical Account

-

-

1,625
77
1,702

1,575
77
1,652

(1,578)
(5)
(119)
(1,702)

(1,478)
(66)
(108)
(1,652)

Technical Account - General Business
Technical Income
Gross premium written
Investment income
Total Technical Income
Technical charges
Claims incurred gross
Transferred (to)/from general business provision
Net operating expenses
Total Technical Charges

19

Balance on Technical Account

-

All long term business is written in the United Kingdom, is in respect of continuing operations and relates to direct insurance contracts.
The Court in Guernsey conducted general business, which is classified as overseas.
The notes on pages 28 to 47 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Consolidated Income and Expenditure Account for the
year ended 31 December 2009
Non-Technical Account
Income
Investment income
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments
Unrealised gains/(losses) on Court investments
Discretionary fund donations and levies
Total Income
Expenditure
Net operating expenses
Court operating expenses
Investment expenses and charges
Discretionary benefits paid and approved Court distributions
Total Expenditure

Notes

2009
£’000

2008
£’000

10
10

6,341
204
287
97
6,929

7,451
(22,214)
(1,886)
96
(16,553)

(3,496)
(2,230)
(441)
(1,485)
(7,652)

(3,114)
(1,897)
(520)
(1,798)
(7,329)

(723)

(23,882)

3,834
84
(764)
(122)
(2,309)

12,265
(159)
961
(48)
10,863

10

Excess of expenditure over income for the financial year
From discretionary fund
From/(to) long term business technical account
(To)/from mainland court funds
To Court funds - Guernsey
(To)/from fund for future appropriations

16
17
17
18

Balance on the Non-Technical Account

-

-

2009
£’000

2008
£’000

Deficit on Technical Account
Surplus/(deficit) on Non-Technical Account
Pension schemes actuarial gain/(loss)

(606)
2,309
(210)

(8,648)
(10,863)
133

Total Recognised Gains and Losses

1,493

(19,378)

Consolidated and Society’s Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses
for the year ended 31 December 2009

The notes on pages 28 to 47 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Society Income and Expenditure Account for the
year ended 31 December 2009
Non-Technical Account
Income
Investment income
Unrealised gains/(losses) on investments
Unrealised gains/(losses) on Court investments
Discretionary fund donations and levies
Total Income
Expenditure
Net operating expenses
Court operating expenses
Investment expenses and charges
Discretionary benefits paid and approved Court distributions
Total Expenditure

Notes

2009
£’000

2008
£’000

10
10

6,081
204
243
97
6,625

7,029
(22,214)
(828)
96
(15,917)

(3,320)
(2,230)
(441)
(1,485)
(7,476)

(2,953)
(1,897)
(520)
(1,798)
(7,168)

(851)

(23,085)

4,005
84
(807)
(122)
(2,309)

12,295
(159)
134
(48)
10,863

10

Excess of expenditure over income for the financial year
From discretionary fund
From/(to) long term business technical account
(To)/from mainland court funds
To court funds - Guernsey
(To)/from fund for future appropriations

16
17
17
18

Balance on the Non-Technical Account

-

The notes on pages 28 to 47 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2009

Assets

Notes

2009

2008

£’000

£’000

81,155
10
66,944
148,109

87,580
10
58,984
146,574

909
1,739
2,648

1,006
1,069
2,075

350
47
5,563
14,733
20,693

533
49
6,866
14,501
21,949

370
359
227
956

188
526
166
880

172,406

171,478

16
17

2,236
71,799
74,035

6,070
70,913
76,983

18

33,984

32,491

19

57,309
1,022
2,451
60,782

54,503
1,522
2,446
58,471

1,629
1,629

1,841
1,841

1,807

1,676

169

16

172,406

171,478

Investments
Land and buildings
Investment in subsidiary
Other financial investments

11
12
12

Debtors
Debtors arising out of insurance operations
Other debtors

13

Other Assets
Tangible assets
Stocks of goods for resale
Certificates of deposit
Cash at bank and in hand

14

Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent
Deferred acquisition costs
Other prepayments and accrued income

15

Total Assets

Liabilities
Reserves
Discretionary Funds
Court Funds

Fund for future appropriations
Technical provisions
Long term business provision
Claims outstanding
General business provision (Guernsey)
Creditors
Creditors arising out of re-insurance operations
Other creditors including taxation and social security

Accruals and deferred income
Pension liability

21&22

Total Liabilities

The notes on pages 28 to 47 form an integral part of these accounts.
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Society Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2009

Assets

Notes

Investments
Land and buildings
Investment in subsidiary
Other financial investments

11
12
12

Debtors
Debtors arising out of insurance operations
Other debtors

13

Other Assets
Tangible assets
Stocks of goods for resale
Certificates of deposit
Cash at bank and in hand

14

Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued interest and rent
Deferred acquisition costs
Other prepayments and accrued income

15

Total Assets

2009

2008

£’000

£’000

70,965
10
70,964
141,939

77,784
10
63,027
140,821

909
1,430
2,339

1,191
491
1,682

350
47
2,202
6,679
9,278

533
49
5,246
4,507
10,335

370
359
227
956

188
526
166
880

154,512

153,718

Liabilities
Reserves
Discretionary Funds
Court Funds

Fund for future appropriations
Technical provisions
Long term business provision
Claims outstanding
General business provision (Guernsey)

16
17

(5,780)
61,948
56,168

(1,775)
61,019
59,244

18

33,984

32,491

19

57,309
1,022
2,451
60,782

54,503
1,522
2,446
58,471

1,602
1,602

1,820
1,820

1,807

1,676

169

16

154,512

153,718

Creditors
Creditors arising out of re-insurance operations
Other creditors including taxation and social security

Accruals and deferred income
Pension liability

21&22

Total Liabilities

The notes on pages 28 to 47 form an integral part of these accounts.
The accounts were approved by the Board on 24th March 2010 and signed on its behalf by:
G Carpenter
Chairman

K Dann
Chief Executive/Company Secretary

P Osborn
Finance Director
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Notes to the Accounts

1. Accounting Policies
a) Basis of Presentation

e) Tax Attributable to the Long Term Business

The Society prepares its annual accounts on the current value
basis of accounting, excluding tangible fixed assets, in accordance
with The Friendly Societies (Accounts and Related Provisions)
Regulations 1994 and with the applicable United Kingdom
accounting standards and generally accepted accounting
principles. In addition the recommendations of the Association of
British Insurers Statement of Recommended Practice ‘Accounting
for Insurance Business’ issued in December 2005, and revised in
December 2006, have been adopted.

Only part of the business is subject to taxation. No provision is
required in these accounts as the benefit of accumulated tax
losses brought forward exceeds net taxable income and capital
gains on the taxable business.
Deferred tax balances are recognised in respect of all timing
differences that have originated but not reversed by the balance
sheet date. This includes timing differences arising on revalued
investments, as required by FRS19, since unrealised gains are
recognised in the income and expenditure accounts. The
recognition of deferred tax assets is limited to the extent that the
Board anticipates making sufficient taxable profits in the future to
absorb the reversal of the underlying timing differences. Deferred
tax balances are discounted to take into account the time value of
the amount of tax deferred to future periods.

The Court assets are not available to back the long term business
of the Society but the Courts remain as branches of the
incorporated Society. Their assets and activities are therefore
shown separately within the notes to the accounts.
The consolidated income and expenditure accounts, the
consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses and
the consolidated balance sheet are the financial statements of the
whole Group. Internal transactions and balances between the
various components of the Society have been eliminated.

f)

Investments

Investments comprise listed investments, units in authorised unit
trusts, loans, mortgages, deposits with credit institutions and
deposits with investment associations.

b) Premium Income
Listed investments and units held in authorised unit trusts are
measured at their mid market value at the balance sheet date.
Amounts receivable in respect of loans and mortgages are shown
at the lower of the amounts advanced or the amount expected to
be recovered where there is evidence of impairment. Deposits with
credit institutions are carried at their historical cost.

Regular premium income is accounted for on a receivable basis,
single premium income is accounted for when received. Outward
reassurance premiums are accounted for in accordance with the
contract terms when due, reflecting the period when risk is
transferred.
c) Claims

Investment Associations are specially authorised societies under
the Friendly Societies Act 1896. The objective of these
Associations is to receive the funds of registered friendly societies
and to invest the same for their benefit. These Associations have
their own rules and are governed by a committee of management
that is independent of the Society’s Board of Directors. Where the
Society has the legal ability to control or exercise dominant
influence over an Investment Association the results, assets and
liabilities of the Association are consolidated using the equity
accounting method.

Death claims are recorded on the basis of notifications received,
maturity claims are recorded when due, and surrenders are
recorded at the earlier of the date when paid or when the policy
ceases to be included in the long term business provision. Claims
on with profit business include bonuses payable. In addition the
cost of administering the claims has been included in the claims
amount, as shown in note 5.
d) Investment Income and Expenses

The Society does not invest in derivative investments.
Investment income includes dividends, property rent, interest,
together with realised gains and losses on investments less their
related expenses. Dividends are taken into account on a cash
basis, which is not considered materially different to an accruals
basis. Interest on fixed interest securities and deposits and rental
income is taken recognised on an accruals basis.

g) Land and Buildings
Land and Buildings, which include properties that are held by the
Society for operational purposes, are freehold and leasehold
investment properties held for long term rental yields and capital
growth. Changes in fair value are recorded as unrealised gains or
losses in the Income and Expenditure account.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

1. Accounting Policies

(continued)

Land and buildings, other than those held by the Society for
operational purposes, are valued annually at open market value,
determined by reference to the indicative selling price. Head
Office managed properties were valued as at 31 December 2009,
by qualified professional valuers working for the Society, Aston
Rose Limited, Chartered Surveyors. Court and Investment
Association managed properties were valued at 31 December
2009 by appointed professional independent valuers. Land and
buildings held for operational purposes are valued annually at
market value with existing use basis by Aston Rose Limited.

j)

Stocks have been valued at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.
k) Pension Schemes
The Society operates two contributory defined benefit pension
schemes covering some of its permanent employees. Both
schemes are closed to new members.
The first defined benefit scheme was open for Foresters’
employees and the second defined benefit scheme was open for
Tunstall employees, prior to the merger of the Tunstall funds into
the Foresters funds. Both schemes are administered by Trustees
and are independent of the Society’s finances. More information
on the Foresters scheme is given in note 21 and on the Tunstall
scheme in note 22.

Land and buildings, occupied by the Society, are required to be
depreciated over their expected useful economic lives under the
requirements of the Friendly Societies Act 1992. In respect of
investment properties, this requirement conflicts with the
accounting standard for Investment Properties (SSAP 19), that no
depreciation should be provided on such investments. The Board
consider that to depreciate the investment properties would not
give a true and fair view and accordingly the provisions of SSAP
19 have been adopted. Depreciation is only one of the factors
reflected in the annual valuations, and the amounts which might
otherwise have been shown cannot reasonably be separately
identified or quantified.

As required by the provisions of Financial Reporting Standard
17 ‘Retirement Benefits’, the difference between the pension
schemes’ assets and their liabilities, including the long term
liabilities to pay pension benefits to the schemes’ members, are
recognised as an obligation of the Society. Accordingly, the
aggregate surplus or deficit appears in either the asset or liabilities
section of the balance sheet. Movements in the year are reflected
in the Non-Technical Income and Expenditure Account or in the
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses.

Freehold land is not subjected to depreciation. No depreciation is
charged on freehold buildings as, in the Directors’ opinion, it is
considered that their estimated useful economic lives and residual
values are such that the required depreciation charge is
immaterial.

The pension cost for the scheme is analysed between current
service cost, past service cost and the net return on pension
scheme assets. Current service cost is the actuarially calculated
present value of the benefits earned by the active employees in
each period. Past service costs, relating to employee service in
prior periods arising in the current period as a result of, or
improvement to, retirement benefits, are recognised in the
technical or non technical account on a straight-line basis over the
period in which the increase in benefits vest. Net expected return
on the pension asset comprises the expected return on the
pension scheme assets less interest on the pension scheme
liabilities.

h) Operating Leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the technical
and non-technical accounts as incurred over the lease term.
i)

Stocks

Gains and Losses on Investments

Unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the
difference between the market value of investments held at the
end of the year and their market value at the beginning of the
year, or their cost when acquired during the year. Realised gains
and losses on investments and land and buildings are calculated
as the difference between purchase costs and net sales proceeds.
An adjustment is made to unrealised gains and losses for the prior
year’s unrealised element included in the current year’s realised
gains and losses.

The Society also contributes to a stakeholder group personal
pension scheme covering certain permanent employees who are
not eligible to join the two defined benefit schemes.

Both realised and unrealised gains (losses) of investments and
land and buildings are credited (charged) to the Income and
Expenditure Account.
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l)

General Business Provision

p) Fund for Future Appropriations

The general business provision represents the accumulated general
business fund balance held to provide against future payments of
the business.

The balance on this account consists of funds which have not
been allocated to specific policyholders or non insurance funds.
Transfers to and from the fund reflect the excess or deficiency
of income over outgoings in each accounting period arising
from participating business. The fund for future appropriations
represents working capital and the value of discretionary future
bonuses to policyholders.

m) Long Term Business Provision
The long term business provision is determined by the Board
on the advice of the Actuarial Function Holder as part of the
annual actuarial valuation of the Society’s long term business.
The provision is initially determined in accordance with the
requirements of the Prudential Sourcebook for Insurers on a net
premium basis for all types of business. However, in accordance
with normal insurance practice, certain reserves required for the
statutory valuation returns are not required to be included in these
accounts that are designed to present a true and fair view. This
adjusted basis is referred to as the modified statutory solvency
basis. This makes sufficient provision for future expenses of
fulfilling the long term contracts and includes a provision for
existing reversionary bonuses and current reversionary bonuses
declared as a result of the valuation. The provision for current
bonuses is shown separately in note 19. Future reversionary
bonuses are implicitly provided for by use of valuation rates of
interest below those expected. No provision is made for terminal
bonuses which can be varied at any time depending on
investment conditions.

q) Cash flow statement
The Society, being a mutual life assurance company, is exempt
from the requirement under Financial Reporting Standard 1
‘Cash Flow Statements’ to produce a cash flow statement.

n) Deferred Acquisition Costs
The costs associated with acquiring new insurance contracts are
deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of margins
contained in future premiums. Such costs are disclosed as an asset
on the balance and more information is shown in note 15.
Deferred acquisition costs are amortised over the term the policies
are written.

o) Fixed Assets and Depreciation
Fixed assets are valued at cost less depreciation or provision for
impairment.
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of tangible fixed
assets over their expected useful lives by equal annual instalments
as follows:
Fixture and fittings - 4 to 10 years
Motor vehicles - 4 to 5 years
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

2. Investment Associations
The Society has a number of Court fund deposits invested in
three organisations known as ‘Investment Associations’. These
associations are all registered as Specially Authorised Societies
under the Friendly Society Act 1974. The associations have their
own constitutions or rules and are governed by a Committee of
Management that is independent to the Society’s Board of
Directors. The objective of these associations is to receive the
deposits of registered friendly societies and their branches and to
invest the same for their benefit. All investment associations are
unincorporated associations and are registered in England and
Wales with the Financial Services Authority. In all cases their
principal country of operation is Great Britain. They do not have
issued share capital and each association is governed by their own
internal constitution or rules.

Financial information for the
year ended 31 December 2009

The Leeds District of the Ancient Order
of Foresters’ Investment Association
The Sheffield & Hallamshire District
of the Ancient Order of Foresters
Investment Association

The Society is currently in a position where it can exert dominant
influence over two of the Investment Associations, namely The
Leeds District of the Ancient Order of Foresters’ Investment
Association and The Sheffield and Hallamshire District of the
Ancient Order of Foresters’ Investment Association. In the event
of a liquidation of these two associations, all final proceeds will
revert to the depositing Courts, and therefore back with the
Society. Furthermore, the Society’s rules clearly allow for exercising
dominant influence through their ability to ask Courts to withdraw
their deposits in these associations. These two associations have
been consolidated using the equity accounting method in line
with the requirements of FRS 2.

2009
Profit for
the year
£’000

2009
Net
Assets
£’000

2008
Profit (loss)
for the year
£’000

2008
Net
Assets
£’000

109

15,281

(181)

15,172

14

2,567

183

2,553

The third Investment Association, The Derby and Derbyshire Foresters’ Investment Association, states within its rules that the members of
the association consist of those individuals who are members of depositing Courts, and not the Courts themselves. The ownership of the
association and controlling voting rights therefore rest with those individual members and not the Courts. Deposits by Courts in The
Derby and Derbyshire Foresters’ Investment Association are shown at the deposit value (cost), which represents cash invested along with
cumulative interest and bonuses paid. At the 31 December 2009 these deposits totalled £2,289k (2008:£2,140k) as shown in note 12,
Other Financial investments.
The Investment Association deposits are investments of the Court and Discretionary funds and consequently have no impact on the
insurance results shown in the Technical Account or the fund for future appropriations.
At a specially arranged Extraordinary General Meeting on 27th January 2010, the Court depositors of the Sheffield & Hallamshire District
of the Ancient Order of Foresters’ Investment Association voted to dissolve the Association with immediate effect. Professional advisors
have been appointed by the Association’s Committee of Management to support the Committee throughout the dissolution process.
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3. Earned Premiums - Long Term Business

2009
£’000

2008
£’000

Gross premiums written
Outward reinsurance premiums

11,692
-

10,552
200

Total Earned Premiums

11,692

10,752

2,832

3,003

83

107

841
674

243
535

195

213

7,067

6,451

11,692

10,552

4,105

3,422

186

128

113

-

841
674

243
114

1,814

485

2009
£’000

2008
£’000

455
1,098
327
(486)

607
1,451
329
(173)

1,394

2,214

(533)
3,144

(2,213)
(4,631)

2,611

(6,844)

Gross premiums written:
Life cover business
Regular premiums
Pensions business
Regular premiums
Investment and savings
Single premiums
Regular premiums
Industrial business
Regular premiums
Group business
Regular premiums

The above includes premiums in respect of participating business
Gross new business premiums (annualised)
Life cover business
Regular premiums
Group business
Regular premiums
Investment and savings
Single premiums
Regular premiums

Single premiums relate to products issued by the Society which allow for one premium only
or allow for recurrent single premiums. Regular premiums contractually allow for payments
on a regular basis and have been annualised in the gross new business premiums.

4. Investment Returns
a) Investment Income - Long Term Business
Income from land and buildings
Income from listed investments
Income from other investments
Losses on the realisation of investments

b) Unrealised gains/(losses) on Investments
Unrealised losses from land and buildings
Unrealised gains/losses from listed investments

c) Investment Expenses and Charges - Long Term Business
Investment management expenses and charges

93

32
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

5. Claims Incurred - Long Term Business

2009
£’000

2008
£’000

Gross claims payable
Reinsurers share
Cost of administration

9,438
(4)
424

9,312
(99)
434

9,858

9,647

6. Change in Technical Provisions - Long Term Business

2009
£’000

2008
£’000

Gross change in long term business provision
Bonuses
Pension annuity guarantee

2,960
(69)
(85)

2,270
(416)
159

2,806

2,013

2009
£’000

2008
£’000

1,268
167
2,027

873
85
2,194

3,462

3,152

b) Net operating expenses includes:
Fees payable to the Society’s auditor for the audit of the annual accounts
Other services supplied pursuant to legislation - FSA Returns
Total audit fees
Auditors remuneration for non-audit services - taxation
Total fees paid to BDO LLP

123
27
150
32
182

138
27
165
28
193

Commission paid
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets
Operating lease rental charges

259
186
31

257
219
38
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7. Net Operating Expenses

a) Long Term Business
Acquisition costs
Change in deferred acquisition costs
Administrative expenses

c) Operating leases
Annual commitments under operating leases for motor vehicles which expire
between one and five years
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8. Staff Costs

2009
£’000

2008
£’000

2,155
214
195

1,910
184
237

2,564

2,331

Number
11
64
17

Number
12
63
18

92

93

£

£

446,898
86,436
25,737

366,570
19,998
20,900

559,071

407,468

£

£

21,000
167,541
-

20,304
16,234
29,700
46,352

Number
2
3
4
2
-

Number
2
2
2
3
1
1

a) Employees
i) Staff Costs:
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs

Included in the 2008 pension costs is a one-off payment of £75,000
paid by the Society into the Foresters Pension Scheme (see note 21).
ii) Average number of persons employed:
Board and Senior Management
Administration and other
Area Co-ordinators

b) Board emoluments
Remuneration
Benefits in kind
Pension scheme contribution

Included in the above amounts are the emoluments (including benefits in kind but
excluding pension contributions) of:

The
The
The
The

Chairman
High Chief Ranger
Chief Executive - joined 26 August 2008 (see remuneration report)
Chief Executive - resigned 9 May 2008

The emoluments of the other Board members (including benefits in kind but excluding
pension contributions) were in the following scale:
£nil - £5,000
£5,001 - £10,000
£10,001 - £15,000
£15,001 - £20,000
£80,001 - £85,000
£100,001 - £110,000
£110,001 - £115,000

9. Taxation
There was no current tax charge in either 2009 or 2008 due to the losses the Society is carrying forward. At 31 December 2009, these
losses stood at £6,031k (2008: £5,507k) in respect of excess management expenses. In addition, as at 31 December 2009 there are realised
and unrealised capital losses totalling £628k (2008: £1,020k). Future tax charges are likely to be minimal due to the availability of the tax
losses being carried forward.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

10. Non-Technical Investment Returns

2009
Group
£’000

a) Investment Income
Income from land and buildings
Income from listed investments
Income from other investments
Gains/(losses) on the realisation of investments
Losses on realisation of investments - Courts
Income from mainland Court investments
Other income - Courts

b) Unrealised gains/(losses) on Investments
Unrealised losses from land and buildings
Unrealised gains/(losses) from listed investments

2009
Society
£’000

2008
Group
£’000

2008
Society
£’000

4,898
442
61
1
(81)
142
878

4,634
442
61
1
(30)
973

5,513
317
473
(4)
(44)
173
1,023

5,261
317
473
(4)
5
977

6,341

6,081

7,451

7,029

(4,594)
4,798

(4,594)
4,798

(17,411)
(4,803)

(17,411)
(4,803)

(22,214)

(22,214)

c) Investment Management Expenses and Charges
Investment expenses and charges

204

204

441

520

441

520

11. Land and Buildings
Freehold
Group
£’000

Long
Leasehold
£’000

Ground
Rent
£’000

Occupied
by Society
£’000

Court
Properties
£’000

Total
£’000

Market Value
At 1 January 2009
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation

62,665
(1,855)
(3,925)

6,835
(730)

13
-

1,335
(125)

16,732
598
(418)
30

87,580
598
(2,273)
(4,750)

At 31 December 2009

56,885

6,105

13

1,210

16,942

81,155

Cost
At 1 January 2009
Additions
Disposals

63,228
(1,915)

8,662
-

13
-

1,887
-

3,128
598
(21)

76,918
598
(1,936)

At 31 December 2009

61,313

8,662

13

1,887

3,705

75,580
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11. Land and Buildings
Society

(continued)
Freehold
£’000

Long
Leasehold
£’000

Ground
Rent
£’000

Occupied
by Society
£’000

Court
Properties
£’000

Total
£’000

Market Value
At 1 January 2009
Disposals
Revaluation

62,665
(1,855)
(3,925)

6,835
(730)

13
-

1,335
(125)

6,936
(333)
149

77,784
(2,188)
(4,631)

At 31 December 2009

56,885

6,105

13

1,210

6,752

70,965

Cost
At 1 January 2009
Disposals

63,228
(1,915)

8,662
-

13
-

1,887
-

1,002
-

74,792
(1,915)

At 31 December 2009

61,313

8,662

13

1,887

1,002

72,877

All investment properties, except the Court and Investment Association properties, were valued by Aston Rose Limited as at 31st December
2009 on a Market Value basis, taking into account the remaining periods of leases granted to tenants. The properties occupied by the Society,
Foresters House and Tunstall, were valued at the same date by Aston Rose Limited on an Existing Use Value basis. No allowance has been made
for the costs of realisation. In order for these accounts to show a true and fair view it is appropriate not to provide depreciation on land and
buildings as it is considered that their useful economic lives and residual values are such that their depreciation is immaterial. Court and
Investment Association properties have been valued by a number of professional independent valuers on a Market Value basis, taking into
account the remaining periods of leases granted to tenants.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

12. Other Financial Investments
At Market Value
Shares and other variable yield securities
and units in unit trusts
Debt securities and other fixed income securities
Investments listed on UK recognised investment exchange
Loans secured by mortgages
Other investments
Deposits in Investment Associations
Court held other investments - mainland
Court held other investments - Guernsey

2009

2008

Group
£’000

Society
£’000

Group
£’000

Society
£’000

35,263
27,879
63,142
749
292
2,289
31
441

34,225
25,481
59,706
561
90
10,135
31
441

28,208
27,061
55,269
905
291
2,140
32
347

27,294
25,026
52,320
684
92
9,552
32
347

66,944

70,964

58,984

63,027

Group
£’000

Society
£’000

Group
£’000

Society
£’000

31,041
26,680
57,721
749
292
2,289
31
441

29,837
24,300
54,137
561
90
10,135
31
441

31,521
26,443
57,964
905
291
2,140
32
347

30,476
24,473
54,949
684
92
9,552
32
347

61,523

65,395

61,679

65,656

2009
At Cost
Shares and other variable yield securities
and units in unit trusts
Debt securities and other fixed income securities
Investments listed on UK recognised investment exchange
Loans secured by mortgages
Other investments
Deposits in Investment Associations
Court held other investments - mainland
Court held other investments - Guernsey

2008

The listed investments, except Investment Association investments, were valued by Tilney Investments, Citigroup Quilter, Brown Shipley
and Legal and General at market value at 31 December 2009. Mortgages and other investments are included at their book cost.
Investment Association investments were valued by the Associations professional advisors.
The balance sheet also includes the cost of £10,000 for all the shares in Foresters General Insurance Services Limited, which is incorporated
in the United Kingdom. In view of the immaterial amounts involved, it has not been consolidated.

13. Other Debtors

Trade debtors
Other debtors including taxation recoverable

2009

2008

Group
£’000

Society
£’000

Group
£’000

Society
£’000

317
1,422

317
1,113

257
812

257
234

1,739

1,430

1,069

491
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14. Tangible Fixed Assets

(Group and Society)

Motor
Vehicles
£’000

Fixtures
& Fittings
£’000

£’000

Cost
As at 1 January 2009
Additions
As at 31 December 2009

26
26

1,774
3
1,777

1,800
3
1,803

Depreciation
As at January 2009
Charge for the year
As at 31 December 2009

26
26

1,241
186
1,427

1,267
186
1,453

Net Book Value
31 December 2009

-

350

350

31 December 2008

-

533

533

15. Deferred Acquisition Costs

Total

(Group and Society)

There were no recoverable deferred acquisition costs with the margin in the policy premiums having been fully used to off-set future
expense provisions. The figure of £359k (2008: £526k) on the balance sheet represents the zillmer asset as at 31 December 2009.
This figure has been added back so as to gross up the long term business provision and the deferred acquisition costs.

16. Discretionary Funds
At Cost
These comprise those funds with specific
purposes as determined by The Society.
At 1 January
Transfer to non-technical account

2009
Group
£’000

2008
Society
£’000

Group
£’000

Society
£’000

6,070
(3,834)

(1,775)
(4,005)

18,335
(12,265)

10,520
(12,295)

At 31 December 2009

2,236

(5,780)

6,070

(1,775)

These funds are comprised as follows:
Court Reserve Fund
Convalescent Home Benefit Fund
War Memorial Benevolent Fund
Foresters Lifeboat Fund
150th Anniversary Educational Awards Fund
High Court Relief Fund
Police Benevolent Fund
Subsidiary Benefit Funds

1,231
62
367
18
315
46
91
106

(6,785)
62
367
18
315
46
91
106

5,019
75
350
16
321
73
104
112

(2,826)
75
350
16
321
73
104
112

At 31 December 2009

2,236

(5,780)

6,070

(1,775)

In the Society’s Balance Sheet, the Court Reserve Fund (CRF) has an overdrawn balance. The CRF is under the direct control of the Board
and is credited with income arising from the Court Funds (note 17) not otherwise allocated to Courts. The Board has discretion to transfer
into the fund such monies as it sees fit. The fund is not generally available to support The Society’s with profits business unless it is
necessary and appropriate to do so.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

17. Court Funds

Mainland
Courts
£’000

Guernsey
Court
£’000

£’000

At 1 January 2009
Transfer from non-technical account

70,380
764

533
122

70,913
886

At 31 December 2009

71,144

655

71,799

At 1 January 2009
Transfer from non-technical account

60,486
807

533
122

61,019
929

At 31 December 2009

61,293

655

61,948

2009
£’000

2008
£’000

At 1 January
Transfer to technical account
Transfer from/(to) non-technical account
Pension schemes actuarial loss/gain

32,491
(606)
2,309
(210)

51,869
(8,648)
(10,863)
133

At 31 December

33,984

32,491

Group

Total

Society

18. Fund for Future Appropriations

19. Technical Provisions

(Group and Society)

(Group and Society)
Long Term
Business
£’000

Pension
Annuity
Guarantee
£’000

Bonus Long Term
Business
Provision
£’000
£’000

Guernsey
General

Claims

Total

£’000

£’000

£’000

At 1 January 2009
Transfer to/(from) technical account

52,976
2,960

964
(85)

563
(69)

54,503
2,806

2,446
5

1,522
(500)

58,471
2,311

At 31 December 2009

55,936

879

494

57,309

2,451

1,022

60,782

Introduction
The Society has three UK with-profits funds; the Order Insurance Fund (OIF), the Pure Endowment Fund (PEF), and Transfer Fund (TF). The
capital position of these funds has been calculated on the existing regulatory basis as the funds size is significantly below the £500m level
the FSA has determined should be applied for calculating liabilities under the realistic methodology. The Society also operates two nonparticipating funds, the Sick and Death Fund (SDF) and the Group Fund (GBF).
Capital Statement
The Capital Statement illustrates the financial strength of the Society's life business at 31 December 2009 and is set out below. This
statement shows an analysis of the available capital resources calculated on a regulatory basis for the Society's with-profits funds as
a whole. It also shows the margins over and above the regulatory requirements and the overall surplus capital within the funds under
these bases. Further, the technical liabilities of the Society (i.e. those directly attributable to members policies), is split between with
profit plans and non-participating plans.
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19. Technical Provisions

(continued)
2009

Capital Statement Table

2008

NonParticipating
£’000

WithProfits
£’000

Total
£’000

Total
£’000

5,434

28,550

33,984

32,491

5,434

(462)
(969)
27,119

(462)
(969)
32,553
(10,642)

(704)
(4,533)
27,254
(6,530)

21,911

20,724

Qualifying capital
Fund for Future Appropriations (FFA)
Regulatory adjustments:
Assets
Liabilities
Total available capital resources
Capital requirement
Overall surplus capital
Analysis of members’ liabilities
With-profits
Non participating
Claims outstanding
General business provision (outside the UK)

20,333
20,333
1,022
2,451

36,976
36,976
-

36,976
20,333
57,309
1,022
2,451

35,803
18,700
54,503
1,522
2,446

Total technical liabilities

23,806

36,976

60,782

58,471

Total technical liabilities 2008

22,668

35,803

58,471

Basis for calculating available capital resources in life business

All three tests are applied at 31 December 2009. The total
regulatory capital requirements for the Society amount to £10.6m
(2008: £6.5m) of which the RCR comprises £3.7m (2008: £0m)
and the Long Term Insurance Capital Requirement (LTICR)
comprises £6.9m (2008: £6.5m). In 2008 the RCR was held as an
additional reserve to cover cashflow matching requirements.

The available capital of the with-profits funds has been
determined in accordance with FSA regulations and includes the
Fund for Future Appropriations (FFA). The FFA represents the
estimated surplus in the funds that has not been allocated and is
available to meet regulatory and other solvency requirements of
the funds.

Restrictions on available capital resources in life business
Basis of calculating capital requirements for life business

The Society is required to hold sufficient capital to meet the FSA’s
minimum capital requirements. Account is also taken of the
Individual Capital Assessment (ICA), which considers certain
business risks not covered by the statutory basis. The available
capital is subject to certain restrictions as to its availability to meet
capital requirements elsewhere in the Society. Some of the funds
have their assets ring-fenced, this means that the associated assets
cannot be used to support other areas of the business. This is
particularly relevant to funds that have been transferred in
through mergers and acquisitions. Full details of these restrictions
are publicly available within the Society's Principle and Practices of
Financial Management. The Society’s total available capital
resources are £33m (2008: £27m).

The Society's Resilience Capital Requirements (RCR) as at 31
December 2009 amount to £3.7m (2008: £3.9m). The RCR is the
additional capital required when a prescribed set of stress tests as
set by the FSA are applied simultaneously to the value of the
assets and liabilities. In particular, for the Society this involves the
following three tests as at 31 December 2009:

•
•
•

a fall in property prices of 10%,
a fall in equity of 20.3%, and
the more onerous of an increase or decrease of 0.89%
on fixed interest yields.
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19. Technical Provisions

(continued)

Options and guarantees

Capital resource sensitivities

Options and guarantees are features of life assurance and
pensions contracts that confer potentially valuable benefits to
members. The Society does not fall within the FSA’s realistic
reporting regime and therefore is not required to measure
liabilities on a market consistent basis, which values options and
guarantees at fair value. The Society maintains two types of
guarantee in the with-profits funds, Maturity Guarantees and
Guaranteed Annuity Options (GAOs). Maturity guarantees are in
respect of conventional with profit business and represent the sum
assured and reversionary bonuses declared to date.

The capital position is sensitive to changes in market conditions,
due to both changes in the value of the assets and the effect any
change in investment conditions would have on the basis for
calculating policy liabilities. The capital position is also sensitive to
assumptions and actual experience relating to mortality, expenses
and policy lapse rates. For conventional with-profits business the
key sensitivity is to future investment returns. The mix of assets is
kept under review taking into account the level of capital required
and the anticipated returns for members.

Technical provisions
An internal review of the Society’s mortality experience supported the basis used in 2009. Our mortality assumptions therefore remain
unchanged from last year. A further five year review of morbidity experience led to no change in the percentages applied to the standard
CMIR 12 inception and recovery rates. The principal assumptions used in the technical provisions calculated on a regulatory basis were:

Class of Business

Order Insurance Fund (£16m)
With profit contracts
(Taxable)
With profit contracts
(Non-taxable) and
Non profit contracts
Pension business
S1/S2
Pure Endowment Fund (£9m)
With profit contracts
(Non-taxable) and
Non profit contracts
Sick and death fund (£7m)
Non profit contracts
(Non-taxable)
Transfer fund (£12m)
Industrial business
With profit (Non-taxable)
Industrial business
Non profit (Non-taxable)
With profit contracts
(Taxable)

Mortality Tables Used

Males
Females
Males
Females
Males
Females

Males
Females

Males
Females

Males
Females
Males
Females
Males
Females

Non profit contracts

Males
Females

With profit contracts
(Non-taxable)

Males
Females

2009

2008

90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

(minus 4 years to actual age)

(minus 4 years to actual age)

90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

(minus 4 years to actual age)

(minus 4 years to actual age)

90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

(minus 4 years to actual age)

(minus 4 years to actual age)

90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

(minus 4 years to actual age)

(minus 4 years to actual age)

90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

(minus 4 years to actual age)

(minus 4 years to actual age)

ELTM 14
ELTM 14
ELTM 14
ELTM 14
90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

ELTM 14
ELTM 14
ELTM 14
ELTM 14
90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

(minus 4 years to actual age)

(minus 4 years to actual age)

90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

(minus 4 years to actual age)

(minus 4 years to actual age)

90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

90% A67/70Ult
100% A67/70Ult

(minus 4 years to actual age)

(minus 4 years to actual age)
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Valuation Interest
Rate pa %
2009
2008
2.50

2.50

3.00

3.00

3.25/
2.0

3.25/
2.0

3.25

3.25

3.25

3.25

3.00
3.40
3.25

3.00
3.40
3.25

2.50
3.40

2.50
3.40

2.75

2.75

3.25

3.25

19. Technical Provisions

(continued)

Asset mix at the valuation date
2009
%
11
19
24
46

2008
%
3
20
21
56

100

100

Movement in available capital

2009
£’000

2008
£’000

Total available capital at 1 January
Changes in valuation assumptions
New business and other factors

27,254
5,299

49,026
(4,576)
(17,196)

32,553

27,254

2009
£’000

2008
£’000

-

-

-

-

Cash
Fixed interest
Equities
Property

20. Provisions for Other Risks and Charges

(Group and Society)

Deferred Taxation
Movements in provision
At 1 January
Charge in technical account
At 31 December
Provision for deferred tax is made up as follows:
Realised and unrealised (losses)/gains on Investments
Acquisition costs
Company losses
Deferred tax asset not recognised in the balance sheet

(138)
(157)
(1,170)
(1,465)

(224)
(142)
(1,070)
(1,436)

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 19 Deferred Taxation, the Society is required to disclose that it has an unprovided deferred
tax asset of £1,465k (2008: £1,436k). No deferred tax asset has been provided for due to the uncertainty of taxable profits arising in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

21. Pension Scheme - Ancient Order of Foresters
The Society operates a defined benefit scheme, the Ancient Order of Foresters 1978 Retirement and Death Benefit Scheme. The scheme
funds are administered by Trustees and are independent of the Society’s finances. Contributions are paid to the scheme in accordance with
the recommendations of an independent actuarial advisor. The scheme is closed to new entrants.
Details in respect of the scheme are provided below in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 17 (FRS 17). A full actuarial valuation
was carried out at 6 April 2007 that showed a deficit in the scheme of £150,000 using the funding method. The Society agreed a funding
basis with the scheme trustees that made a one-off payment into the fund of £75,000 in 2008 together with enhanced employer
contributions of £1,500 per month.
The actuarial valuation at 6 April 2007 was updated to the accounting date by an independent qualified actuary in accordance with FRS 17.
As required by FRS 17, the value of the defined benefit liabilities has been measured using the projected unit method and both the assets
and liabilities include the value of those pensions in payment which are secured with insured annuities.
The following tables set out the key FRS 17 assumptions used for the scheme:

Assumptions

31 December
2008

2009
Price Inflation
Discount rate
Pension increases (LPI)
Salary growth
Life expectancy of male aged 65 in 2008

3.6%
5.3%
3.0%
4.6%
23.9 yrs

2007

3.0%
6.4%
3.0%
4.0%
23.9 yrs

3.2%
5.9%
3.1%
4.7%
23.6 yrs

The following tables set out as at the accounting dates the fair value of the assets, a breakdown of the assets into the main asset classes,
the present value of the FRS 17 liabilities and the deficit of assets below the FRS 17 liabilities (which equals the gross pension liability).

Asset distribution and expected return
2009
Expected
Fair value
return
£’000
Equities
Bonds
Annuity policies
Other

7.6%
4.7%
5.3%
6.4%

1,358
604
2,117
335

Total

31 December
2008
Expected
Fair value
return
£’000
7.4%
4.9%
6.4%
5.5%

1,050
906
1,939
322

2007
Expected Fair value
return
£’000
7.6%
5.1%
5.9%
5.9%

756
1,751
1,953
84

4,414

4,217

4,544

4,414
(4,736)
(322)
44

4,217
(4,429)
(212)
29

4,544
(4,704)
(160)
22

(278)

(183)

(138)

Balance Sheet
Total fair value of assets
Present value of liabilities
Gross pension asset (liability)
Deferred tax
Net pension liability

None of the assets of the scheme are invested in the Society’s own financial instruments or in any property occupied by the Company.
Over the year to 31 December 2009, contributions were made to the scheme by the Society of £40,000 (2008: £113,000 including a one
off payment of £75,000), in addition to the PPF levy of £14,506 (2008: £11,929). The Society has agreed to pay annual contributions of
16.4% pa of total pensionable salaries in respect of accruing benefits into the scheme together with monthly contributions of £1,500 to
fund the current pension deficit.
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21. Pension Scheme - Ancient Order of Foresters

(continued)

Movement in scheme assets during the period:

Year to 31 December
2009
2008
£’000
£’000

Assets in scheme at start of year
Expected return on scheme assets
Actuarial gain/(loss)
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid

4,217
239
355
115
7
(519)

4,544
263
(440)
46
8
(204)

Assets in scheme at end of year

4,414

4,217

Liabilities in scheme at start of year
Current service cost
Interest cost on scheme liabilities
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Employee contributions
Benefits paid

4,429
58
268
493
7
(519)

4,704
54
273
(406)
8
(204)

Assets in scheme at end of year

4,736

4,429

58

54

239
(268)

263
(273)

(29)

(10)

Actual return less expected return on scheme assets
Experience gains and (losses) arising on scheme liabilities
Gain or (loss) due to changes in assumptions underlying the present value of scheme liabilities

355
72
(565)

(440)
(234)
640

Actuarial (loss) gain recognised in the STRGL

(138)

(34)

Movement in scheme liabilities during the period:

Analysis of the amount charged to operating profit:
Current service cost and total operating charge
The scheme is closed to new entrants and, under the method used to calculate pension costs
in accordance with FRS 17, the service cost as a percentage of pensionable payroll will tend
to increase as the average age of the membership increases.
Analysis of the amount credited to other finance income:
Expected return on pension scheme assets
Interest on post retirement liabilities
Net return to credit to finance income
Total amount recognised in statement of total recognised gain and losses (STRGL):

History of experience gains and losses is:
Actual less expected return - £’000’s
as a percentage of assets
Experience gain (losses) on the liabilities - £’000’s
as a percentage of liabilities
Total amount recognised in STRGL - £’000’s
as a percentage of liabilities

2009
355
8%

2008
(440)
(10%)

72
2%

(234)
(5%)

(138)
3%

(34)
(1%)
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31 December
2007
(144)
(3%)

2006
39
1%

2005
459
11%

-%

(29)
(1%)

(48)
(1%)

(237)
(5%)

318
7%

(108)
(2%)

Notes to the Accounts (continued)

22. Pension Scheme - Tunstall
The Society operates a defined benefit scheme, The Tunstall and District Assurance Collecting Society Staff Superannuation Fund Scheme.
The scheme funds are administered by trustees and are independent of the Society’s finances. Contributions are paid to the scheme in
accordance with the recommendations of an independent actuarial advisor. A full actuarial valuation was carried out at 31 December 2007
and updated to the accounting date by a qualified independent actuary. The scheme is closed to new entrants.

Assumptions

31 December
2008

2009
Price inflation
Discount rate
Pension increases
Salary growth
Life expectancy of male aged 65 in 2008

3.6%
5.8%
3.5%
4.6%
23.9yrs

Asset distribution and expected return
2009

Equities
Gilts
Other/Cash

Expected
Return

Fair
Value
£’000

7.6%
4.1%
2.1%

742
682
18

2007

3.0%
6.4%
3.0%
4.0%
23.9yrs

31 December
2008
Expected
Fair
Return
Value
£’000
7.4%
3.4%
2.1%

623
642
16

3.2%
5.9%
3.1%
4.7%
22.4yrs

2007
Expected
Return

Fair
Value
£’000

7.6%
4.5%
5.5%

714
725
12

1,442

1,281

1,451

1,442
(1,316)
126
(17)

1,281
(1,088)
193
(26)

1,451
(1,425)
26
(4)

Balance sheet
Total fair value of assets
Present value of liability
Gross pension asset (liability)
Deferred tax
Net pension asset

109

167

22

Movement in scheme assets during the period:

Year to 31 December
2009
2008
£’000
£’000

Assets in scheme at start of year
Expected return on scheme assets
Actuarial gain/(loss)
Employer contributions
Benefits paid

1,281
55
113
32
(39)

1,451
82
(237)
24
(39)

Assets in scheme at end of year

1,442

1,281
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22. Pension Scheme - Tunstall

(continued)

Movement in scheme liabilities during the period:

Year to 31 December
2009
2008
£’000
£’000

Liabilities in scheme at start of year
Current service cost
Interest cost on scheme liabilities
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Benefits paid

1,088
13
69
185
(39)

1,425
22
84
(404)
(39)

Liabilities in scheme at end of year

1,316

1,088

The full actuarial valuation at 31 December 2007 showed an increase in surplus from £27,000 to £56,000 on the funding basis. It has been agreed
with the employer that contributions of £2,000 per month will be made from 1 January 2006 in addition to the PPF levy of £4,026 (2008: £3,950).
As a result, the current service cost will increase as a proportion of the salary roll as the members of the scheme approach retirement.

Analysis of the amount charged to operating profit

Year to 31 December
2009
2008
£’000
£’000

Current service cost and total operating charge

13

22

Expected return on pension scheme assets
Interest on pension scheme assets

55
(69)

82
(84)

Net return

(14)

(2)

113
(185)

(237)
404

(72)

167

Analysis of the amount credited to other finance income

Total amount recognised in statement of total recognised
gain and losses (STRGL)
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets
Experience gains (losses) arising on the scheme liabilities
Changes in assumptions underlying present value of the Scheme liabilities
Actuarial (loss) gain recognised in STRGL

History of experience gains and losses
2009

2008

113
8%

(237)
(19%)

Experience gain (losses) on the liabilities - £’000’s
as a percentage of liabilities

-%

Total amount recognised in STRGL - £’000’s
as a percentage of liabilities

(72)
5%

Actual less expected return - £’000’s
as a percentage of assets

31 December
2007

2006

2005

3
-%

24
2%

120
9%

(19)
(2%)

-%

-%

402
28%

167
15%

(14)
(1%)

121
9%

236
16%

The scheme is now closed to new entrants and under the method used to calculate pension costs in accordance with FRS17, the current
service cost will tend to increase as the average age of Membership increases.
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23. Related Party Disclosures
Control
The Society is controlled by its members, in particular through the Annual Meeting of delegates at the High Court.
Transactions
The Board, the Chief Executive or their immediate family held various policies on standard terms (including the right to bonuses where
appropriate) throughout the year. The aggregate premiums payable for the year by the Directors amounted to £7,255 (2008: £10,794)
in respect of the Society’s products.
The Court in Guernsey conducts general business that is shown in a separate Technical Account at the bottom of page 25. The Court had
the following transactions and contracts with Court Committee of Management members, their relatives or businesses:

Management fee to Orion Insurance Management Limited
Rent to Orion Insurance Management Limited

2009
£’000

2008
£’000

132,876
15,524

132,876
14,673

The Society has taken advantage of the exemption conferred by Financial Reporting Standard 8 ‘Related party disclosures’ not to disclose
transactions with members of the group headed by The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited on the grounds that those
entities are controlled within that group, and the entities are included in consolidated financial statements.

24. Creditor Payment Policy

26. With-Profits Actuary and
Actuarial Function Holder

The Society’s policy is to settle creditors within the credit terms
specified, unless the transaction is subject to dispute.

Mr Gavin Lock of Towers Watson LLP (formerly Watson Wyatt Ltd)
held the Actuarial Function Holder and With-Profits Actuary roles
throughout 2009. In accordance with section 77 of the Friendly
Societies Act 1992 the Society has requested Mr Lock to provide
certain particulars and he has confirmed the following information:

25. Contingent Liability
On 7 November 2008, an accident occurred in one of the Society’s
Court held properties that resulted in the death of one
of the tenants. The Directors understand that the Health and
Safety Executive, along with the Police and the Crown Prosecution
Service, are still making enquiries into this regrettable occurrence,
from which legal actions might ensue. The Directors are not able
at this time to determine the quantum of any liability that might
arise from such an action, but it is considered unlikely that the
cost of this should be covered by any insurance policies held.

•

That neither he or his family were members of
the Society throughout the year;

•

Neither he nor his family, have any pecuniary interests
in the Society; and

•

The aggregate amount fees paid to Towers Watson LLP
in 2009 were £417,890 (2008: £511,338) exclusive of
Value Added tax.

27. Approval of Financial Statements
These financial statements were approved by the Board on
24 March 2010.
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The Ancient Order of Foresters Friendly Society Limited
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Straightforward financial solutions with a human touch

